



College Coordinating Council Meeting

November 9, 2022
 9:30 a.m. – 10:30 a.m.
 SSV 151 – Board Room

Type of Meeting: Regular
Note Taker: Patty McClure, Megan Aceves
Please Review/Bring: Agenda, Minutes

Committee Members:
 Van Rider, Academic Senate
 Diana Ferrassoli, ASO
 Pamela Ford, Classified Union
 Greg Bormann Confidential/Management/Supervisory/Administrators
 LaDonna Trimble, Deans
 Dr. Jason Bowen, Faculty Union

 Dr. Jennifer Zellet, **CHAIR**
 Shami Brar, Vice President of Administrative Services
 Bridget Cook, General Counsel
 Dr. Howard Davis, Interim Vice President of Academic Affairs
 Harmony Miller, Interim Executive Director of Human Resources
 Dr. Jose Rivera, Interim Vice President of Student Services

MEETING

Items	Person(s) Responsible	Time	Action
STANDING ITEMS:			
I. Approval of Previous Minutes of October 26, 2022	All	1 minute	
II. Constituent Reports	All	5 minutes	
DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS:			
I. AP 2712 – Conflict of Interest Code	Jennifer	2 minutes	Continued Discussion from October 26 th meeting. Email from the League.
II. BP/AP 6200 Budget Preparation	Shami	10 minutes	
III. BP/AP 6250 – Budget Management	Shami	10 minutes	
IV. BP/AP 6300 – Fiscal Management	Shami	10 minutes	
V. AP 6305 – Reserves (NEW)	Shami	10 minutes	

POLICIES OUT FOR CONSTITUENT REVIEW

BP 2310 – Regular Meetings of the Board – Out for Review on October 26, 2022
 BP/AP 4040 – Library and Learning Support Services – Out for Review on October 26, 2022

POLICIES IN PROCESS		
BP/AP 2510 – Participation in Local Decision Making	Howard	Working with the task force.
BP/AP 3720 – Computer Network IT Committee	Shami and IT Committee	
BP/AP 4010 – Academic Calendar	Howard	Waiting for Negotiations.
BP/AP 4100 – Graduation Requirements	Jose	Working on revisions with counseling.
BP/AP 4400 – Community Services	Howard	Working on revisions.
BP/AP 6340 – Bids and Contracts	Shami	
AP 6370 – Contracts for Personal Services	Shami	
BP/AP 7130 - Compensation	Shami & Legal	
NEXT MEETING DATE: December 14, 2022		



College Coordinating Council Minutes

October 26, 2022
9:30 a.m. – 10:30 a.m.
SSV 151 – Board Room

Type of Meeting: Regular
Note Taker: Patty McClure, Megan Aceves
Please Review/Bring: Agenda, Minutes

Committee Members:

~~Van Rider~~, Academic Senate – Tamira Palmetto-Despain
Diana Ferrassoli , ASO - **ABSENT**
Pamela Ford, Classified Union
Greg Bormann Confidential/Management/Supervisory/Administrators
LaDonna Trimble, Deans
Dr. Jason Bowen, Faculty Union

Dr. Jennifer Zellet, **CHAIR**
Shami Brar, Vice President of Administrative Services - **ABSENT**
Bridget Cook, General Counsel - **ABSENT**
Dr. Howard Davis, Interim Vice President of Academic Affairs
Harmony Miller, Interim Executive Director of Human Resources - **ABSENT**
Dr. Jose Rivera, Interim Vice President of Student Services

MINUTES

Items	Person(s) Responsible	Time	Action
STANDING ITEMS:			
I. Approval of Previous Minutes of September 28, 2022	All	1 minute	Tamira stated that she needed to abstain. Howard motioned, Jose seconded, and the minutes were approved as presented.
II. Constituent Reports	All	5 minutes	Tamira stated that the Academic Senate welcomes the President to the committee.
DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS:			
I. BP/AP 2110 – Vacancies on the Board	Jennifer	2 minutes	It was agreed to go to the November 14, 2022, Board Meeting.
II. BP 2310 – Regular Meetings of the Board	Jennifer	2 minutes	It was agreed to go out for constituent review for 30 days.
III. BP/AP 2710 – Conflict of Interest	Jennifer	2 minutes	It was agreed to go to the November 14, 2022, Board Meeting.
IV. AP 2712 – Conflict of Interest Code	Jennifer	2 minutes	There was some discussion on spouse/domestic partner, etc. and to consult with Legal and the League on the terms. Also, it was agreed to do a word search, throughout the document, to do a find and replace on

			the pronouns.	
V.	BP/AP 4010 – Academic Calendar	Howard	2 minutes	There was some discussion on language of “designated administrator” and the name of the <i>Juneteenth</i> holiday changed to <i>National Independence Day</i> . There was some discussion on the history of the minutes for the Calendar, Committee, including the location of where to house them, and that the websites needed to be kept current. This item was tabled until negotiations are finalized to include any additional holidays. This will be brought back at another meeting.
VI.	BP/AP 4040 – Library and Learning Support Services	Howard	2 minutes	It was agreed to go out for constituent review for 30 days.
VII.	AP 4041 – Instructional Media Services	Howard	2 minutes	Per Howard’s request, this will be brought back with BP/AP 4400.
VIII.	AP 4042 – Learning Support Services	Howard	2 minutes	Per Howard’s request, this will be brought back with BP/AP 4400.
IX.	BP/AP 4400 – Community Services	Howard	2 minutes	There was discussion around credit for prior learning, compliance issue and questions around adding the Title 5 sections. It was agreed that Howard would work on and bring it back to another meeting.
X.	NEW – Emeritus Status	Jennifer	2 minutes	Jennifer provided background, and there was discussion on a committee providing the criteria or a measurement. Jason brought up an example from another institution’s policy. It was agreed to have everyone look around at other college’s policies and to bring it back to another meeting for further discussion.

POLICIES OUT FOR CONSTITUENT REVIEW

BP/AP 4100 – Graduation Requirements & Degrees & Certificates – Since September 28, 2022
 BP 2310 – Regular Meetings of the Board – Since October 26, 2022
 BP/AP 4040 – Library and Learning Support Services – Since October 26, 2022

POLICIES IN PROCESS

BP/AP 2510 – Participation in Local Decision Making	Howard	Working with the task force.
BP/AP 3720 – Computer Network IT Committee	Shami and IT Committee	
BP/AP 4010 – Academic Calendar	Howard	Waiting for Negotiations
BP/AP 4400 – Community Services	Howard	
BP/AP 6340 – Bids and Contracts	Shami	

AP 6370 – Contracts for Personal Services	Shami	
BP/AP 7130 - Compensation	Shami & Legal	
NEXT MEETING DATE: November 9, 2022		



AP 2712 Conflict of Interest Code

References:

Government Code Sections 87103 subdivision (e), 87300-87302, 89501, 89502 and 89503 Title 2 Section 18730

Pursuant to Section 18730 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, incorporation by reference of the terms of this regulation along with the designation of employees and the formulation of disclosure categories in Section 13 below constitute the adoption and promulgation of a conflict of interest code within the meaning of Government Code Section 87300 or the amendment of a conflict of interest code within the meaning of Government Code Section 87306 if the terms of this regulation are substituted for terms of a conflict of interest code already in effect. A code so amended or adopted and promulgated requires the reporting of reportable items in a manner substantially equivalent to the requirements of article 2 of chapter 7 of the Political Reform Act, Government Code Sections 81000 et seq. The requirements of a conflict of interest code are in addition to other requirements of the Political Reform Act, such as the general prohibition against conflicts of interest contained in Government Code Section 87100, and to other state or local laws pertaining to conflicts of interest.

Section 1. Definitions

The definitions contained in the Political Reform Act of 1974, regulations of the Fair Political Practices Commission (2 Cal. Code of Regs. sections 18100, et seq.), and any amendments to the Act or regulations, are incorporated by reference into this conflict of interest code.

Section 2. Designated Employees

The persons holding positions listed in Section 13 are designated employees. It has been determined that these persons make or participate in the making of decisions which may foreseeably have a material effect on economic interests.

Section 3. Disclosure Categories

This code does not establish any disclosure obligation for those designated employees who are also specified in Government Code Section 87200 if they are designated in this code in that same capacity or if the geographical jurisdiction of this agency is the same as or is wholly included within the jurisdiction in which those persons must report their economic interests pursuant to article 2 of chapter 7 of the Political Reform Act, Government Code Sections 87200 et seq. In addition, this code does not establish any disclosure obligation for any designated employees who are designated in a conflict of interest code for another agency, if all of the following apply:



- (A) The geographical jurisdiction of this agency is the same as or is wholly included within the jurisdiction of the other agency;
- (B) The disclosure assigned in the code of the other agency is the same as that required under article 2 of chapter 7 of the Political Reform Act, Government Code Section 87200; and
- (C) The filing officer is the same for both agencies.¹ Such persons are covered by this code for disqualification purposes only. With respect to all other designated employees, the disclosure categories set forth in Section 13 specify which kinds of economic interests are reportable. Such a designated employee shall disclose in his/ ~~er~~ her/~~they~~ statement of economic interests those economic interests he/she/~~they~~ has which are of the kind described in the disclosure categories to which he/she/~~they~~ is assigned in Section 13. It has been determined that the economic interests set forth in a designated employee's disclosure categories are the kinds of economic interests which he/she/~~they~~ foreseeably can affect materially through the conduct of his/ her office.

Section 4. Statements of Economic Interests

Place of Filing. The code reviewing body shall instruct all designated employees within its code to file statements of economic interests with the agency or with the code reviewing body, as provided by the code reviewing body in the agency's conflict of interest code.²

Section 5. Statements of Economic

Interests Time of Filing.

- (A) Initial Statements. All designated employees employed by the agency on the effective date of this code, as originally adopted, promulgated, and approved by the code reviewing body, shall file statements within 30 days after the effective date of this code. Thereafter, each person already in a position when it is designated by an amendment to this code shall file an initial statement within 30 days after the effective date of the amendment.
- (B) Assuming Office Statements. All persons assuming designated positions after the effective date of this code shall file statements within 30 days after assuming the designated positions, or if subject to State Senate confirmation, 30 days after being nominated or appointed.
- (C) Annual Statements. All designated employees shall file statements no later than April

¹ Designated employees who are required to file statements of economic interests under any other agency's conflict of interest code, or under article 2 for a different jurisdiction, may expand their statement of economic interests to cover reportable interests in both jurisdictions, and file copies of this expanded statement with both entities in lieu of filing separate and distinct statements, provided that each copy of such expanded statement filed in place of an original is signed and verified by the designated employee as if it were an original. See Government Code Section 81004.

² See Government Code Section 81010 and Title 2 Section 18115 for the duties of filing officers and persons



in agencies who make and retain copies of statements and forward the originals to the filing officer.

1.

(D) Leaving Office Statements. All persons who leave designated positions shall file statements within 30 days after leaving office.

Section 5.5. Statements for Persons Who Resign Prior to Assuming Office

Any person who resigns within 12 months of initial appointment, or within 30 days of the date of notice provided by the filing officer to file an assuming office statement, is not deemed to have assumed office or left office, provided he/ ~~or~~ she/they did not make or participate in the making of, or use his/ ~~or~~ her/their position to influence any decision and did not receive or become entitled to receive any form of payment as a result of his/ ~~or~~ her appointment. Such persons shall not file either an assuming or leaving office statement.

(A) Any person who resigns a position within 30 days of the date of a notice from the filing officer shall do both of the following:

- (1) File a written resignation with the appointing power; and
- (2) File a written statement with the filing officer declaring under penalty of perjury that during the period between appointment and resignation he/ ~~or~~ she/they did not make, participate in the making, or use the position to influence any decision of the agency or receive, or become entitled to receive, any form of payment by virtue of being appointed to the position.

Section 6. Contents of and Period Covered by Statements of Economic Interests:

(A) **Contents of Initial Statements.** Initial statements shall disclose any reportable investments, interests in real property and business positions held on the effective date of the code and income received during the 12 months prior to the effective date of the code.

(B) **Contents of Assuming Office Statements.** Assuming office statements shall disclose any reportable investments, interests in real property and business positions held on the date of assuming office or, if subject to State Senate confirmation or appointment, on the date of nomination, and income received during the 12 months prior to the date of assuming office or the date of being appointed or nominated, respectively.

(C) **Contents of Annual Statements.** Annual statements shall disclose any reportable investments, interests in real property, income and business positions held or received during the previous calendar year provided, however, that the period covered by an employee's first annual statement shall begin on the effective date of the code or the date of assuming office whichever is later.

(D) **Contents of Leaving Office Statements.** Leaving office statements shall disclose reportable investments, interests in real property, income and business positions held or received during the period between the closing date of the last statement filed and the date of leaving office.



Section 7. Manner of Reporting

Statements of economic interests shall be made on forms prescribed by the Fair Political Practices Commission and supplied by the agency, and shall contain the following information:

(A) **Investments and Real Property Disclosure.** When an investment or an interest in real property³ is required to be reported,⁴ the statement shall contain the following:

1. A statement of the nature of the investment or interest;
2. The name of the business entity in which each investment is held, and a general description of the business activity in which the business entity is engaged;
3. The address or other precise location of the real property;
4. A statement whether the fair market value of the investment or interest in real property exceeds two thousand dollars (\$2,000), exceeds ten thousand dollars (\$10,000), exceeds one hundred thousand dollars (\$100,000), or exceeds one million dollars (\$1,000,000).

(B) **Personal Income Disclosure.** When personal income is required to be reported,⁵ the statement shall contain:

1. The name and address of each source of income aggregating five hundred dollars (\$500) or more in value, or fifty dollars (\$50) or more in value if the income was a gift, and a general description of the business activity, if any, of each source;
2. A statement whether the aggregate value of income from each source, or in the case of a loan, the highest amount owed to each source, was one thousand dollars (\$1,000) or less, greater than one thousand dollars (\$1,000), greater than ten thousand dollars (\$10,000), or greater than one hundred thousand dollars (\$100,000);
3. A description of the consideration, if any, for which the income was received;
4. In the case of a gift, the name, address and business activity of the donor and any intermediary through which the gift was made; a description of the gift; the amount or value of the gift; and the date on which the gift was received;
5. In the case of a loan, the annual interest rate, and the security, if any, given for the

³ For the purpose of disclosure only (not disqualification), an interest in real property does not include the principal residence of the filer.

⁴ Investments and interests in real property which have a fair market value of less than \$2,000 are not investments and interests in real property within the meaning of the Political Reform Act. However, investments or interests in real property of an individual include those held by the individual's spouse and dependent children as well as a pro rata share of any investment or interest in real property of any business entity or trust in which the individual, spouse and dependent children own, in the aggregate, a direct, indirect or beneficial interest of 10 percent or greater.

⁵ A designated employee's income includes his/ or her community property interest in the income of his/ or her spouse but does not include salary or reimbursement for expenses received from a state, local or federal government agency.



loan and the term of the loan.

(C) **Business Entity Income Disclosure.** When income of a business entity, including income of a sole proprietorship, is required to be reported,⁶ the statement shall contain:

1. The name, address, and a general description of the business activity of the business entity;
2. The name of every person from whom the business entity received payments if the filer's pro rata share of gross receipts from such person was equal to or greater than ten thousand dollars (\$10,000).

(D) **Business Position Disclosure.** When business positions are required to be reported, a designated employee shall list the name and address of each business entity in which he/ ~~or~~ she/they is a director, officer, partner, trustee, employee, or in which he/ ~~or~~ she/they holds any position of management, a description of the business activity in which the business entity is engaged, and the designated employee's position with the business entity.

(E) **Acquisition or Disposal During Reporting Period.** In the case of an annual or leaving office statement, if an investment or an interest in real property was partially or wholly acquired or disposed of during the period covered by the statement, the statement shall contain the date of acquisition or disposal.

Section 8. Prohibition on Receipt of Honoraria

(A) No member of a state board or commission, and no designated employee of a state or local government agency, shall accept any honorarium from any source, if the member or employee would be required to report the receipt of income or gifts from that source on his/ ~~or~~ her statement of economic interests. This section shall not apply to any part-time member of the governing board of any public institution of higher education, unless the member is also an elected official. Subdivisions (a), (b), and (c) of Government Code Section 89501 shall apply to the prohibitions in this section.

This section shall not limit or prohibit payments, advances, or reimbursements for travel and related lodging and subsistence authorized by Government Code Section 89506.

Section 8.1 Prohibition on Receipt of Gifts in Excess of \$470

(A) No member of a state board or commission, and no designated employee of a state

⁶ Income of a business entity is reportable if the direct, indirect or beneficial interest of the filer and the filer's spouse in the business entity aggregates a 10 percent or greater interest. In addition, the disclosure of persons who are clients or customers of a business entity is required only if the clients or customers are within one of the disclosure categories of the filer.



or local government agency, shall accept gifts with a total value of more than \$470 in a calendar year from any single source, if the member or employee would be required to report the receipt of income or gifts from that source on his/her statement of economic interests. This section shall not apply to any part-time member of the governing board of any public institution of higher education, unless the member is also an elected official.

Subdivisions (e), (f), and (g) of Government Code Section 89503 shall apply to the prohibitions in this section.

Section 8.2. Loans to Public Officials

- (A) No elected officer of a state or local government agency shall, from the date of his/ ~~or~~ her election to office through the date that he/ ~~or~~ she/they vacates office, receive a personal loan from any officer, employee, member, or consultant of the state or local government agency in which the elected officer holds office or over which the elected officer's agency has direction and control.
- (B) No public official who is exempt from the state civil service system pursuant to subdivisions (c), (d), (e), (f), and (g) of Section 4 of Article VII of the Constitution shall, while he/~~or~~she/they holds office, receive a personal loan from any officer, employee, member, or consultant of the state or local government agency in which the public official holds office or over which the public official's agency has direction and control. This subdivision shall not apply to loans made to a public official whose duties are solely secretarial, clerical, or manual.
- (C) No elected officer of a state or local government agency shall, from the date of his/ ~~or~~ election to office through the date that he/~~or~~ she/they vacates office, receive a personal loan from any person who has a contract with the state or local government agency to which that elected officer has been elected or over which that elected officer's agency has direction and control. This subdivision shall not apply to loans made by banks or other financial institutions or to any indebtedness created as part of a retail installment or credit card transaction, if the loan is made or the indebtedness created in the lender's regular course of business on terms available to members of the public without regard to the elected officer's official status.
- (D) No public official who is exempt from the state civil service system pursuant to subdivisions (c), (d), (e), (f), and (g) of Section 4 of Article VII of the Constitution shall, while he/ ~~or~~ she/they holds office, receive a personal loan from any person who has a contract with the state or local government agency to which that elected officer has been elected or over which that elected officer's agency has direction and control. This subdivision shall not apply to loans made by banks or other financial institutions or to any indebtedness created as part of a retail installment or credit card transaction, if the loan is made or the indebtedness created in the lender's regular course of business on terms available to members of the public without regard to the elected officer's official



status. This subdivision shall not apply to loans made to a public official whose duties are solely secretarial, clerical, or manual.

(E) This section shall not apply to the following:

1. Loans made to the campaign committee of an elected officer or candidate for elective office.
2. Loans made by a public official's spouse, child, parent, grandparent, grandchild, brother, sister, parent-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, nephew, niece, aunt, uncle, or first cousin, or the spouse of any such persons, provided that the person making the loan is not acting as an agent or intermediary for any person not otherwise exempted under this section.
3. Loans from a person which, in the aggregate, do not exceed five hundred dollars (\$500) at any given time.
4. Loans made, or offered in writing, before January 1, 1998.

Section 8.3. Loan Terms

(A) Except as set forth in subdivision (B), no elected officer of a state or local government agency shall, from the date of his/her election to office through the date he/ ~~or~~ she/they vacates office, receive a personal loan of five hundred dollars (\$500) or more, except when the loan is in writing and clearly states the terms of the loan, including the parties to the loan agreement, date of the loan, amount of the loan, term of the loan, date or dates when payments shall be due on the loan and the amount of the payments, and the rate of interest paid on the loan.

(B) This section shall not apply to the following types of loans:

1. Loans made to the campaign committee of the elected officer.
2. Loans made to the elected officer by his/ ~~or~~ her/their spouse, child, parent, grandparent, grandchild, brother, sister, parent-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, nephew, niece, aunt, uncle, or first cousin, or the spouse of any such person, provided that the person making the loan is not acting as an agent or intermediary for any person not otherwise exempted under this section.
3. Loans made, or offered in writing, before January 1, 1998.

(C) Nothing in this section shall exempt any person from any other provision of Title 9 of the Government Code.

Section 8.4. Personal Loans

(A) Except as set forth in subdivision (B), a personal loan received by any designated



employee shall become a gift to the designated employee for the purposes of this section in the following circumstances:

1. If the loan has a defined date or dates for repayment, when the statute of limitations for filing an action for default has expired.
2. If the loan has no defined date or dates for repayment, when one year has elapsed from the later of the following:
 - a. The date the loan was made.
 - b. The date the last payment of one hundred dollars (\$100) or more was made on the loan.
 - c. The date upon which the debtor has made payments on the loan aggregating to less than two hundred fifty dollars (\$250) during the previous 12 months.

(B) This section shall not apply to the following types of loans:

1. A loan made to the campaign committee of an elected officer or a candidate for elective office.
2. A loan that would otherwise not be a gift as defined in this title.
3. A loan that would otherwise be a gift as set forth under subdivision (A), but on which the creditor has taken reasonable action to collect the balance due.
4. A loan that would otherwise be a gift as set forth under subdivision (A), but on which the creditor, based on reasonable business considerations, has not undertaken collection action. Except in a criminal action, a creditor who claims that a loan is not a gift on the basis of this paragraph has the burden of proving that the decision for not taking collection action was based on reasonable business considerations.
5. A loan made to a debtor who has filed for bankruptcy and the loan is ultimately discharged in bankruptcy.

(C) Nothing in this section shall exempt any person from any other provisions of Title 9 of the Government Code.

Section 9. Disqualification

No designated employee shall make, participate in making, or in any way attempt to use his/her official position to influence the making of any governmental decision which he/she/they knows or has reason to know will have a reasonably foreseeable material financial effect, distinguishable from its effect on the public generally, on the official or a member of his/ ~~or~~ her/their immediate family or on:

(A) Any business entity in which the designated employee has a direct or indirect investment worth two thousand dollars (\$2,000) or more;

(B) Any real property in which the designated employee has a direct or indirect interest



worth two thousand dollars (\$2,000) or more;

- (C) Any source of income, other than gifts and other than loans by a commercial lending institution in the regular course of business on terms available to the public without regard to official status, aggregating five hundred dollars (\$500) or more in value provided to, received by or promised to the designated employee within 12 months prior to the time when the decision is made;
- (D) Any business entity in which the designated employee is a director, officer, partner, trustee, employee, or holds any position of management; or
- (E) Any donor of, or any intermediary or agent for a donor of, a gift or gifts aggregating \$470 or more provided to; received by or promised to the designated employee within twelve (12) months prior to the time when the decision is made.

Section 9.3. Legally Required Participation

No designated employee shall be prevented from making or participating in the making of any decision to the extent his/ ~~or~~ her/~~their~~ participation is legally required for the decision to be made. The fact that the vote of a designated employee who is on a voting body is needed to break a tie does not make his/ ~~or~~ her participation legally required for purposes of this section.

Section 9.5. Disqualification of State Officers and Employees

In addition to the general disqualification provisions of section 9, no state administrative official shall make, participate in making, or use his/ ~~or~~ her/~~their~~ official position to influence any governmental decision directly relating to any contract where the state administrative official knows or has reason to know that any party to the contract is a person with whom the state administrative official, or any member of his/ ~~or~~ her immediate family has, within 12 months prior to the time when the official action is to be taken:

- (A) Engaged in a business transaction or transactions on terms not available to members of the public, regarding any investment or interest in real property; or
- (B) Engaged in a business transaction or transactions on terms not available to members of the public regarding the rendering of goods or services totaling in value one thousand dollars (\$1,000) or more.

Section 10. Disclosure of Disqualifying Interest

When a designated employee determines that he/ ~~or~~ she/~~they~~ should not make a governmental decision because he/ ~~or~~ she/~~they~~ has a disqualifying interest in it, the determination not to act may be accompanied by disclosure of the disqualifying interest.



Section 11. Assistance of the Commission and Counsel

Any designated employee who is unsure of his/ ~~or~~ her/their duties under this code may request assistance from the Fair Political Practices Commission pursuant to Government Code Section 83114 or from the attorney for his/ ~~or~~ her/their agency, provided that nothing in this section requires the attorney for the agency to issue any formal or informal opinion.

Section 12. Violations

This code has the force and effect of law. Designated employees violating any provision of this code are subject to the administrative, criminal and civil sanctions provided in the Political Reform Act, Government Code Sections 81000 - 91015. In addition, a decision in relation to which a violation of the disqualification provisions of this code or of Government Code Section 87100 or 87450 has occurred may be set aside as void pursuant to Government Code Section 91003.

Section 13. Designated Positions and Disclosure Requirements

Disclosure Categories

Category 1

A designated employee assigned to this category shall disclose:

- a. Interests in real property within the boundaries of the District as well as real property within two miles of the property used or the potential site.
- b. Investments and business positions in business entities and income (including receipt of gifts, loans, and travel payments) from sources of the type that engage in the acquisition or disposal of real property or are engaged in building construction or design for school districts.

Category 2

A designated employee assigned to this category shall disclose investments and business positions in business entities and income from sources which manufacture or sell food items, supplies, books, machinery or equipment of the type utilized by the administrative unit for which the designated employee is Manager, Director, Supervisor, or responsible.

Category 3

A designated employee assigned to this category shall disclose investments and business positions in business entities and income from sources which are contractors or subcontractors engaged in the performance of work or services of the type utilized by the administrative unit for which the designated employee is Manager, Director, Supervisor, or responsible.



Designated Employees

Disclosure Categories

Vice President Academic Affairs	All
Vice President Student Services	All
Vice President Human Resources and Employee Relations	All
Executive Director of Business Services	All
Vice President of Administrative Services	All
General Counsel	All
Executive Director of Facilities	All
Executive Director of the Foundation	All
Executive Director of Information Technology Services	2, 3 All
Executive Director of Marketing & Public Information	2 All
Deans	2, 3
Associate Dean	2, 3
Consultants/New Positions	*

*Consultants/new positions are included in the list of designated positions and shall disclose pursuant to the broadest disclosure requirements in this conflict of interest code subject to the following limitation:

The Superintendent/President may determine in writing that a particular consultant/new position, although a “designated position,” is hired to perform a range of duties that are limited in scope and thus not required to fully comply with the disclosure requirements in this section. Such written determination shall include a description of the consultant’s or new position’s duties and based upon that description, a statement of the extent of disclosure requirements. The Superintendent/President’s determination is a public record and shall be retained for public inspection in the same manner and location as this conflict of interest code.

Officials Who Manage Public Investments

It has been determined that the positions listed below manage public investments and will file a statement of economic interests pursuant to Government Code Section 87200.

- Board of Trustees
- ~~Executive Director of Business Services~~
- Vice President of Administrative Services
- Superintendent/President

An individual holding one of the above listed positions may contact the Fair Political Practices Commission for assistance or written advice regarding their filing obligations if they believe that their position has been incorrectly categorized. The Fair Political Practices Commission makes the final determination whether a position is covered by Government Code Section 87200.

Also see BP 2200 Board Duties and Responsibilities, BP/AP 2710 Conflict of Interest, BP



2715 Code of Ethics/Standards of Practice, BP 2716 Board Political Activity, and BP 2717 Personal Use of Public Resources – Board.

Approved: 7/5/05
Revised: 5/8/06
Revised: 9/10/07
Revised: 6/13/11
Revised: 3/10/14
Revised: 9/12/16
Revised: 2/12/18
Revised: 11/12/19
Revised: 11/14/22

*CCLC Recommended Language
**AVC Recommended Language

Question Re: Spouse Reference

Jane Wright <jwright@cleague.org>
To: Patty McClure <pmcclure@avc.edu>

Fri, Oct 28, 2022 at 3:06 PM

Happy Friday, Patty!

The term "spouse" is directly from Title 2 Section 18730 subdivision 8.2, (E) 1 & 2.

The template language in AP 2712 parallels that of the law.

I have embedded Title 2 Section 18730 which uses the term "spouse" in several places.

Title 2. Administration
Division 6. Fair Political Practices Commission
Chapter 7. Conflicts of Interest
Article 2. Disclosure (Refs & Annos)

2 CCR § 18730

§ 18730. Provisions of Conflict of Interest Codes.

(a) Incorporation by reference of the terms of this regulation along with the designation of employees and the formulation of disclosure categories in the Appendix referred to below constitute the adoption and promulgation of a conflict of interest code within the meaning of Section 87300 or the amendment of a conflict of interest code within the meaning of Section 87306 if the terms of this regulation are substituted for terms of a conflict of interest code already in effect. A code so amended or adopted and promulgated requires the reporting of reportable items in a manner substantially equivalent to the requirements of article 2 of chapter 7 of the Political Reform Act, Sections 81000, et seq. The requirements of a conflict of interest code are in addition to other requirements of the Political Reform Act, such as the general prohibition against conflicts of interest contained in Section 87100, and to other state or local laws pertaining to conflicts of interest.

(b) The terms of a conflict of interest code amended or adopted and promulgated pursuant to this regulation are as follows:

(1) Section 1. Definitions.

The definitions contained in the Political Reform Act of 1974, regulations of the Fair Political Practices Commission (Regulations 18110, et seq.), and any amendments to the Act or regulations, are incorporated by reference into this conflict of interest code.

(2) Section 2. Designated Employees.

The persons holding positions listed in the Appendix are designated employees. It has been determined that these persons make or participate in the making of decisions which may foreseeably have a material effect on economic interests.

(3) Section 3. Disclosure Categories.

This code does not establish any disclosure obligation for those designated employees who are also specified in Section 87200 if they are designated in this code in that same capacity or if the geographical jurisdiction of this agency is the same as or is wholly included within the jurisdiction in which those persons must report their economic interests pursuant to article 2 of chapter 7 of the Political Reform Act, Sections 87200, et seq.

In addition, this code does not establish any disclosure obligation for any designated employees who are designated in a conflict of interest code for another agency, if all of the following apply:

- (A) The geographical jurisdiction of this agency is the same as or is wholly included within the jurisdiction of the other agency;
- (B) The disclosure assigned in the code of the other agency is the same as that required under article 2 of chapter 7 of the Political Reform Act, Section 87200; and
- (C) The filing officer is the same for both agencies.¹

Such persons are covered by this code for disqualification purposes only. With respect to all other designated employees, the disclosure categories set forth in the Appendix specify which kinds of economic interests are reportable. Such a designated employee shall disclose in his or her statement of economic interests those economic interests he or she has which are of the kind described in the disclosure categories to which he or she is assigned in the Appendix. It has been determined that the economic interests set forth in a designated employee's disclosure categories are the kinds of economic interests which he or she foreseeably can affect materially through the conduct of his or her office.

(4) Section 4. Statements of Economic Interests: Place of Filing.

The code reviewing body shall instruct all designated employees within its code to file statements of economic interests with the agency or with the code reviewing body, as provided by the code reviewing body in the agency's conflict of interest code.²

(5) Section 5. Statements of Economic Interests: Time of Filing.

(A) Initial Statements. All designated employees employed by the agency on the effective date of this code, as originally adopted, promulgated and approved by the code reviewing body, shall file statements within 30 days after the effective date of this code. Thereafter, each person already in a position when it is designated by an amendment to this code shall file an initial statement within 30 days after the effective date of the amendment.

(B) Assuming Office Statements. All persons assuming designated positions after the effective date of this code shall file statements within 30 days after assuming the designated positions, or if subject to State Senate confirmation, 30 days after being nominated or appointed.

(C) Annual Statements. All designated employees shall file statements no later than April 1. If a person reports for military service as defined in the Servicemember's Civil Relief Act, the deadline for the annual statement of economic interests is 30 days following his or her return to office, provided the person, or someone authorized to represent the person's interests, notifies the filing officer in writing prior to the applicable filing deadline that he or she is subject to that federal statute and is unable to meet the applicable deadline, and provides the filing officer verification of his or her military status.

(D) Leaving Office Statements. All persons who leave designated positions shall file statements within 30 days after leaving office.

(5.5) Section 5.5. Statements for Persons Who Resign Prior to Assuming Office.

Any person who resigns within 12 months of initial appointment, or within 30 days of the date of notice provided by the filing officer to file an assuming office statement, is not deemed to have assumed office or left office, provided he or she did not make or participate in the making of, or use his or her position to influence any decision and did not receive or become entitled to receive any form of payment as a result of his or her appointment. Such persons shall not file either an assuming or leaving office statement.

(A) Any person who resigns a position within 30 days of the date of a notice from the filing officer shall do both of the following:

- (1) File a written resignation with the appointing power; and
- (2) File a written statement with the filing officer declaring under penalty of perjury that during the period between appointment and resignation he or she did not make, participate in the making, or use the position to influence any decision of the agency or receive, or become entitled to receive, any form of payment by virtue of being appointed to the position.

(6) Section 6. Contents of and Period Covered by Statements of Economic Interests.

(A) Contents of Initial Statements.

Initial statements shall disclose any reportable investments, interests in real property and business positions held on the effective date of the code and income received during the 12 months prior to the effective date of the code.

(B) Contents of Assuming Office Statements.

Assuming office statements shall disclose any reportable investments, interests in real property and business positions held on the date of assuming office or, if subject to State Senate confirmation or appointment, on the date of nomination, and income received during the 12 months prior to the date of assuming office or the date of being appointed or nominated, respectively.

(C) Contents of Annual Statements. Annual statements shall disclose any reportable investments, interests in real property, income and business positions held or received during the previous calendar year provided, however, that the period covered by an employee's first annual statement shall begin on the effective date of the code or the date of assuming office whichever is later, or for a board or commission member subject to Section 87302.6, the day after the closing date of the most recent statement filed by the member pursuant to Regulation 18754.

(D) Contents of Leaving Office Statements.

Leaving office statements shall disclose reportable investments, interests in real property, income and business positions held or received during the period between the closing date of the last statement filed and the date of leaving office.

(7) Section 7. Manner of Reporting.

Statements of economic interests shall be made on forms prescribed by the Fair Political Practices Commission and supplied by the agency, and shall contain the following information:

(A) Investment and Real Property Disclosure.

When an investment or an interest in real property³ is required to be reported,⁴ the statement shall contain the following:

1. A statement of the nature of the investment or interest;
2. The name of the business entity in which each investment is held, and a general description of the business activity in which the business entity is engaged;
3. The address or other precise location of the real property;
4. A statement whether the fair market value of the investment or interest in real property equals or exceeds \$2,000, exceeds \$10,000, exceeds \$100,000, or exceeds \$1,000,000.

(B) Personal Income Disclosure. When personal income is required to be reported,⁵ the statement shall contain:

1. The name and address of each source of income aggregating \$500 or more in value, or \$50 or more in value if the income was a gift, and a general description of the business activity, if any, of each source;
2. A statement whether the aggregate value of income from each source, or in the case of a loan, the highest amount owed to each source, was \$1,000 or less, greater than \$1,000, greater than \$10,000, or greater than \$100,000;
3. A description of the consideration, if any, for which the income was received;
4. In the case of a gift, the name, address and business activity of the donor and any intermediary through which the gift was made; a description of the gift; the amount or value of the gift; and the date on which the gift was received;
5. In the case of a loan, the annual interest rate and the security, if any, given for the loan and the term of the loan.

(C) Business Entity Income Disclosure. When income of a business entity, including income of a sole proprietorship, is required to be reported,⁶ the statement shall contain:

1. The name, address, and a general description of the business activity of the business entity;
2. The name of every person from whom the business entity received payments if the filer's pro rata share of gross receipts from such person was equal to or greater than \$10,000.

(D) Business Position Disclosure. When business positions are required to be reported, a designated employee shall list the name and address of each business entity in which he or she is a director, officer, partner, trustee, employee, or in which he or she holds any position of management, a description of the business activity in which the business entity is engaged, and the designated employee's position with the business entity.

(E) Acquisition or Disposal During Reporting Period. In the case of an annual or leaving office statement, if an investment or an interest in real property was partially or wholly acquired or disposed of during the period covered by the statement, the statement shall contain the date of acquisition or disposal.

(8) Section 8. Prohibition on Receipt of Honoraria.

(A) No member of a state board or commission, and no designated employee of a state or local government agency, shall accept any honorarium from any source, if the member or employee would be required to report the receipt of income or gifts from that source on his or her statement of economic interests.

(B) This section shall not apply to any part-time member of the governing board of any public institution of higher education, unless the member is also an elected official.

(C) Subdivisions (a), (b), and (c) of Section 89501 shall apply to the prohibitions in this section.

(D) This section shall not limit or prohibit payments, advances, or reimbursements for travel and related lodging and subsistence authorized by Section 89506.

(8.1) Section 8.1. Prohibition on Receipt of Gifts in Excess of \$470.

(A) No member of a state board or commission, and no designated employee of a state or local government agency, shall accept gifts with a total value of more than \$470 in a calendar year from any single source, if the member or employee would be required to report the receipt of income or gifts from that source on his or her statement of economic interests.

(B) This section shall not apply to any part-time member of the governing board of any public institution of higher education, unless the member is also an elected official.

(C) Subdivisions (e), (f), and (g) of Section 89503 shall apply to the prohibitions in this section.

(8.2) Section 8.2. Loans to Public Officials.

(A) No elected officer of a state or local government agency shall, from the date of his or her election to office through the date that he or she vacates office, receive a personal loan from any officer, employee, member, or consultant of the state or local government agency in which the elected officer holds office or over which the elected officer's agency has direction and control.

(B) No public official who is exempt from the state civil service system pursuant to subdivisions (c), (d), (e), (f), and (g) of Section 4 of Article VII of the Constitution shall, while he or she holds office, receive a personal loan from any officer, employee, member, or consultant of the state or local government agency in which the public official holds office or over which the public official's agency has direction and control. This subdivision shall not apply to loans made to a public official whose duties are solely secretarial, clerical, or manual.

(C) No elected officer of a state or local government agency shall, from the date of his or her election to office through the date that he or she vacates office, receive a personal loan from any person who has a contract with the state or local government agency to which that elected officer has been elected or over which that elected officer's agency has direction and control. This subdivision shall not apply to loans made by banks or other financial institutions or to any indebtedness created as part of a retail installment or credit card transaction, if the loan is made or the indebtedness created in the lender's regular course of business on terms available to members of the public without regard to the elected officer's official status.

(D) No public official who is exempt from the state civil service system pursuant to subdivisions (c), (d), (e), (f), and (g) of Section 4 of Article VII of the Constitution shall, while he or she holds office, receive a personal loan from any person who has a contract with the state or local government agency to which that elected officer has been elected or over which that elected officer's agency has direction and control. This subdivision shall not apply to loans made by banks or other financial institutions or to any indebtedness created as part of a retail installment or credit card transaction, if the loan is made or the indebtedness created in the lender's regular course of business on terms available to members of the public without regard to the elected officer's official status. This subdivision shall not apply to loans made to a public official whose duties are solely secretarial, clerical, or manual.

(E) This section shall not apply to the following:

1. Loans made to the campaign committee of an elected officer or candidate for elective office.

2. Loans made by a public official's spouse, child, parent, grandparent, grandchild, brother, sister, parent-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, nephew, niece, aunt, uncle, or first cousin, or the spouse of any such persons, provided that the person making the loan is not acting as an agent or intermediary for any person not otherwise exempted under this section.

3. Loans from a person which, in the aggregate, do not exceed \$500 at any given time.

4. Loans made, or offered in writing, before January 1, 1998.

(8.3) Section 8.3. Loan Terms.

(A) Except as set forth in subdivision (B), no elected officer of a state or local government agency shall, from the date of his or her election to office through the date he or she vacates office, receive a personal loan of \$500 or more, except when the loan is in writing and clearly states the terms of the loan, including the parties to the loan agreement, date of the loan, amount of the loan, term of the loan, date or dates when payments shall be due on the loan and the amount of the payments, and the rate of interest paid on the loan.

(B) This section shall not apply to the following types of loans:

1. Loans made to the campaign committee of the elected officer.
2. Loans made to the elected officer by his or her **spouse**, child, parent, grandparent, grandchild, brother, sister, parent-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, nephew, niece, aunt, uncle, or first cousin, or the **spouse** of any such person, provided that the person making the loan is not acting as an agent or intermediary for any person not otherwise exempted under this section.
3. Loans made, or offered in writing, before January 1, 1998.

(C) Nothing in this section shall exempt any person from any other provision of Title 9 of the Government Code.

(8.4) Section 8.4. Personal Loans.

(A) Except as set forth in subdivision (B), a personal loan received by any designated employee shall become a gift to the designated employee for the purposes of this section in the following circumstances:

1. If the loan has a defined date or dates for repayment, when the statute of limitations for filing an action for default has expired.
2. If the loan has no defined date or dates for repayment, when one year has elapsed from the later of the following:
 - a. The date the loan was made.
 - b. The date the last payment of \$100 or more was made on the loan.
 - c. The date upon which the debtor has made payments on the loan aggregating to less than \$250 during the previous 12 months.

(B) This section shall not apply to the following types of loans:

1. A loan made to the campaign committee of an elected officer or a candidate for elective office.
2. A loan that would otherwise not be a gift as defined in this title.
3. A loan that would otherwise be a gift as set forth under subdivision (A), but on which the creditor has taken reasonable action to collect the balance due.
4. A loan that would otherwise be a gift as set forth under subdivision (A), but on which the creditor, based on reasonable business considerations, has not undertaken collection action. Except in a criminal action, a creditor who claims that a loan is not a gift on the basis of this paragraph has the burden of proving that the decision for not taking collection action was based on reasonable business considerations.
5. A loan made to a debtor who has filed for bankruptcy and the loan is ultimately discharged in bankruptcy.

(C) Nothing in this section shall exempt any person from any other provisions of Title 9 of the Government Code.

(9) Section 9. Disqualification.

No designated employee shall make, participate in making, or in any way attempt to use his or her official position to influence the making of any governmental decision which he or she knows or has reason to know will have a reasonably foreseeable material financial effect, distinguishable from its effect on the public generally, on the official or a member of his or her immediate family or on:

- (A) Any business entity in which the designated employee has a direct or indirect investment worth \$2,000 or more;
- (B) Any real property in which the designated employee has a direct or indirect interest worth \$2,000 or more;
- (C) Any source of income, other than gifts and other than loans by a commercial lending institution in the regular course of business on terms available to the public without regard to official status,

aggregating \$500 or more in value provided to, received by or promised to the designated employee within 12 months prior to the time when the decision is made;

(D) Any business entity in which the designated employee is a director, officer, partner, trustee, employee, or holds any position of management; or

(E) Any donor of, or any intermediary or agent for a donor of, a gift or gifts aggregating \$470 or more provided to, received by, or promised to the designated employee within 12 months prior to the time when the decision is made.

(9.3) Section 9.3. Legally Required Participation.

No designated employee shall be prevented from making or participating in the making of any decision to the extent his or her participation is legally required for the decision to be made. The fact that the vote of a designated employee who is on a voting body is needed to break a tie does not make his or her participation legally required for purposes of this section.

(9.5) Section 9.5. Disqualification of State Officers and Employees.

In addition to the general disqualification provisions of section 9, no state administrative official shall make, participate in making, or use his or her official position to influence any governmental decision directly relating to any contract where the state administrative official knows or has reason to know that any party to the contract is a person with whom the state administrative official, or any member of his or her immediate family has, within 12 months prior to the time when the official action is to be taken:

(A) Engaged in a business transaction or transactions on terms not available to members of the public, regarding any investment or interest in real property; or

(B) Engaged in a business transaction or transactions on terms not available to members of the public regarding the rendering of goods or services totaling in value \$1,000 or more.

(10) Section 10. Disclosure of Disqualifying Interest.

When a designated employee determines that he or she should not make a governmental decision because he or she has a disqualifying interest in it, the determination not to act may be accompanied by disclosure of the disqualifying interest.

(11) Section 11. Assistance of the Commission and Counsel.

Any designated employee who is unsure of his or her duties under this code may request assistance from the Fair Political Practices Commission pursuant to Section 83114 and Regulations 18329 and 18329.5 or from the attorney for his or her agency, provided that nothing in this section requires the attorney for the agency to issue any formal or informal opinion.

(12) Section 12. Violations.

This code has the force and effect of law. Designated employees violating any provision of this code are subject to the administrative, criminal and civil sanctions provided in the Political Reform Act, Sections 81000-91014. In addition, a decision in relation to which a violation of the disqualification provisions of this code or of Section 87100 or 87450 has occurred may be set aside as void pursuant to Section 91003.

¹ Designated employees who are required to file statements of economic interests under any other agency's conflict of interest code, or under article 2 for a different jurisdiction, may expand their statement of economic interests to cover reportable interests in both jurisdictions, and file copies of this expanded statement with both entities in lieu of filing separate and distinct statements, provided that each copy of such expanded statement filed in place of an original is signed and verified by the designated employee as if it were an original. See Section 81004.

² See Section 81010 and Regulation 18115 for the duties of filing officers and persons in agencies who make and retain copies of statements and forward the originals to the filing officer.

³ For the purpose of disclosure only (not disqualification), an interest in real property does not include the principal residence of the filer.

⁴ Investments and interests in real property which have a fair market value of less than \$2,000 are not investments and interests in real property within the meaning of the Political Reform Act. However, investments or interests in real property of an individual include those held by the individual's **spouse** and dependent children as well as a pro rata share of any investment or interest in real property of any

business entity or trust in which the individual, **spouse** and dependent children own, in the aggregate, a direct, indirect or beneficial interest of 10 percent or greater.

⁵ A designated employee's income includes his or her community property interest in the income of his or her **spouse** but does not include salary or reimbursement for expenses received from a state, local or federal government agency.

⁶ Income of a business entity is reportable if the direct, indirect or beneficial interest of the filer and the filer's **spouse** in the business entity aggregates a 10 percent or greater interest. In addition, the disclosure of persons who are clients or customers of a business entity is required only if the clients or customers are within one of the disclosure categories of the filer.

Note: Authority cited: Section 83112, Government Code. Reference: Sections 87103(e), 87300-87302, 89501, 89502 and 89503, Government Code.

HISTORY

1. New section filed 4-2-80 as an emergency; effective upon filing (Register 80, No. 14). Certificate of Compliance included.
2. Editorial correction (Register 80, No. 29).
3. Amendment of subsection (b) filed 1-9-81; effective thirtieth day thereafter (Register 81, No. 2).
4. Amendment of subsection (b)(7)(B)1. filed 1-26-83; effective thirtieth day thereafter (Register 83, No. 5).
5. Amendment of subsection (b)(7)(A) filed 11-10-83; effective thirtieth day thereafter (Register 83, No. 46).
6. Amendment filed 4-13-87; operative 5-13-87 (Register 87, No. 16).
7. Amendment of subsection (b) filed 10-21-88; operative 11-20-88 (Register 88, No. 46).
8. Amendment of subsections (b)(8)(A) and (b)(8)(B) and numerous editorial changes filed 8-28-90; operative 9-27-90 (Reg. 90, No. 42).
9. Amendment of subsections (b)(3), (b)(8) and renumbering of following subsections and amendment of Note filed 8-7-92; operative 9-7-92 (Register 92, No. 32).
10. Amendment of subsection (b)(5.5) and new subsections (b)(5.5)(A)-(A)(2) filed 2-4-93; operative 2-4-93 (Register 93, No. 6).
11. Change without regulatory effect adopting Conflict of Interest Code for California Mental Health Planning Council filed 11-22-93 pursuant to title 1, section 100, California Code of Regulations (Register 93, No. 48). Approved by Fair Political Practices Commission 9-21-93.
12. Change without regulatory effect redesignating Conflict of Interest Code for California Mental Health Planning Council as chapter 62, section 55100 filed 1-4-94 pursuant to title 1, section 100, California Code of Regulations (Register 94, No. 1).
13. Editorial correction adding History 11 and 12 and deleting duplicate section number (Register 94, No. 17).
14. Amendment of subsection (b)(8), designation of subsection (b)(8)(A), new subsection (b)(8)(B), and amendment of subsections (b)(8.1)-(b)(8.1)(B), (b)(9)(E) and Note filed 3-14-95; operative 3-14-95 pursuant to Government Code section 11343.4(d) (Register 95, No. 11).
15. Editorial correction inserting inadvertently omitted language in footnote 4 (Register 96, No. 13).
16. Amendment of subsections (b)(8)(A)-(B) and (b)(8.1)(A), repealer of subsection (b)(8.1)(B), and amendment of subsection (b)(12) filed 10-23-96; operative 10-23-96 pursuant to Government Code section 11343.4(d) (Register 96, No. 43).
17. Amendment of subsections (b)(8.1) and (9)(E) filed 4-9-97; operative 4-9-97 pursuant to Government Code section 11343.4(d) (Register 97, No. 15).
18. Amendment of subsections (b)(7)(B)5., new subsections (b)(8.2)-(b)(8.4)(C) and amendment of Note filed 8-24-98; operative 8-24-98 pursuant to Government Code section 11343.4(d) (Register 98, No. 35).
19. Editorial correction of subsection (a) (Register 98, No. 47).
20. Amendment of subsections (b)(8.1), (b)(8.1)(A) and (b)(9)(E) filed 5-11-99; operative 5-11-99 pursuant to Government Code section 11343.4(d) (Register 99, No. 20).
21. Amendment of subsections (b)(8.1)-(b)(8.1)(A) and (b)(9)(E) filed 12-6-2000; operative 1-1-2001 pursuant to the 1974 version of Government Code section 11380.2 and Title 2, California Code of

Regulations, section 18312(d) and (e) (Register 2000, No. 49).

22. Amendment of subsections (b)(3) and (b)(10) filed 1-10-2001; operative 2-1-2001. Submitted to OAL for filing pursuant to *Fair Political Practices Commission v. Office of Administrative Law*, 3 Civil C010924, California Court of Appeal, Third Appellate District, nonpublished decision, April 27, 1992 (FPPC regulations only subject to 1974 Administrative Procedure Act rulemaking requirements) (Register 2001, No. 2).

23. Amendment of subsections (b)(7)(A)4., (b)(7)(B)1.-2., (b)(8.2)(E)3., (b)(9)(A)-(C) and footnote 4. filed 2-13-2001. Submitted to OAL for filing pursuant to *Fair Political Practices Commission v. Office of Administrative Law*, 3 Civil C010924, California Court of Appeal, Third Appellate District, nonpublished decision, April 27, 1992 (FPPC regulations only subject to 1974 Administrative Procedure Act rulemaking requirements) (Register 2001, No. 7).

24. Amendment of subsections (b)(8.1)-(b)(8.1)(A) filed 1-16-2003; operative 1-1-2003. Submitted to OAL for filing pursuant to *Fair Political Practices Commission v. Office of Administrative Law*, 3 Civil C010924, California Court of Appeal, Third Appellate District, nonpublished decision, April 27, 1992 (FPPC regulations only subject to 1974 Administrative Procedure Act rulemaking requirements) (Register 2003, No. 3).

25. Editorial correction of History 24 (Register 2003, No. 12).

26. Editorial correction removing extraneous phrase in subsection (b)(9.5)(B) (Register 2004, No. 33).

27. Amendment of subsections (b)(2)-(3), (b)(3)(C), (b)(6)(C), (b)(8.1)-(b)(8.1)(A), (b)(9)(E) and (b)(11)-(12) filed 1-4-2005; operative 1-1-2005 pursuant to Government Code section 11343.4 (Register 2005, No. 1).

28. Amendment of subsection (b)(7)(A)4. filed 10-11-2005; operative 11-10-2005 (Register 2005, No. 41).

29. Amendment of subsections (a), (b)(1), (b)(3), (b)(8.1), (b)(8.1)(A) and (b)(9)(E) filed 12-18-2006; operative 1-1-2007. Submitted to OAL pursuant to *Fair Political Practices Commission v. Office of Administrative Law*, 3 Civil C010924, California Court of Appeal, Third Appellate District, nonpublished decision, April 27, 1992 (FPPC regulations only subject to 1974 Administrative Procedure Act rulemaking requirements) (Register 2006, No. 51).

30. Amendment of subsections (b)(8.1)-(b)(8.1)(A) and (b)(9)(E) filed 10-31-2008; operative 11-30-2008. Submitted to OAL for filing pursuant to *Fair Political Practices Commission v. Office of Administrative Law*, 3 Civil C010924, California Court of Appeal, Third Appellate District, nonpublished decision, April 27, 1992 (FPPC regulations only subject to 1974 Administrative Procedure Act rulemaking requirements and not subject to procedural or substantive review by OAL) (Register 2008, No. 44).

31. Amendment of section heading and section filed 11-15-2010; operative 12-15-2010. Submitted to OAL for filing pursuant to *Fair Political Practices Commission v. Office of Administrative Law*, 3 Civil C010924, California Court of Appeal, Third Appellate District, nonpublished decision, April 27, 1992 (FPPC regulations only subject to 1974 Administrative Procedure Act rulemaking requirements and not subject to procedural or substantive review by OAL) (Register 2010, No. 47).

32. Amendment of section heading and subsections (a)-(b)(1), (b)(3)-(4), (b)(5)(C), (b)(8.1)-(b)(8.1)(A) and (b)(9)(E) and amendment of footnote 1 filed 1-8-2013; operative 2-7-2013. Submitted to OAL for filing pursuant to *Fair Political Practices Commission v. Office of Administrative Law*, 3 Civil C010924, California Court of Appeal, Third Appellate District, nonpublished decision, April 27, 1992 (FPPC regulations only subject to 1974 Administrative Procedure Act rulemaking requirements and not subject to procedural or substantive review by OAL) (Register 2013, No. 2).

33. Amendment of subsections (b)(8.1)-(b)(8.1)(A), (b)(8.2)(E)3. and (b)(9)(E) filed 12-15-2014; operative 1-1-2015 pursuant to section 18312(e)(1)(A), title 2, California Code of Regulations. Submitted to OAL for filing and printing pursuant to *Fair Political Practices Commission v. Office of Administrative Law*, 3 Civil C010924, California Court of Appeal, Third Appellate District, nonpublished decision, April 27, 1992 (FPPC regulations only subject to 1974 Administrative Procedure Act rulemaking requirements) (Register 2014, No. 51).

34. Redesignation of portions of subsection (b)(8)(A) as new subsections (b)(8)(B)-(D), amendment of subsections (b)(8.1)-(b)(8.1)(A), redesignation of portions of subsection (b)(8.1)(A) as new subsections (b)(8.1)(B)-(C) and amendment of subsection (b)(9)(E) filed 12-1-2016; operative 12-31-2016 pursuant

to Cal. Code Regs. tit. 2, section 18312(e). Submitted to OAL for filing pursuant to *Fair Political Practices Commission v. Office of Administrative Law*, 3 Civil C010924, California Court of Appeal, Third Appellate District, nonpublished decision, April 27, 1992 (FPPC regulations only subject to 1974 Administrative Procedure Act rulemaking requirements and not subject to procedural or substantive review by OAL) (Register 2016, No. 49).

Have a good weekend,

Jane

Dr. Jane B. Wright

Director of Policy and Procedure Services
Community College League of [California](#)
[2017 O Street](#)
[Sacramento, CA 95811](#)
jwright@cclleague.org

From: Patty McClure <pmcclure@avc.edu>

Sent: Friday, October 28, 2022 2:49 PM

To: Jane Wright <jwright@cclleague.org>

Subject: Question Re: Spouse Reference

[Quoted text hidden]



BP 6200 Budget Preparation

References:

Education Code Section 70902 subdivision (b)(5); Title 5 Sections 58300 et seq.
Accreditation Standard III.D

Each year, the Superintendent/President shall present to the Board of Trustees a budget, developed with the Chief Business Officer, and prepared in accordance with Title 5 and the California Community Colleges Budget and Accounting Manual. The schedule for presentation and review of budget proposals shall comply with state law and regulations, and provide adequate time for Board study.

Budget development shall meet the following criteria:

- The annual budget shall support the District's master and educational plans.
- Assumptions upon which the budget is based are presented to the Board of Trustees for review.
- A schedule is provided to the Board of Trustees each year that includes dates for presentation of the tentative budget, required public hearing(s), Board study session(s), and approval of the final budget. At the public hearings, interested persons may appear and address the Board of Trustees regarding the proposed budget or any item in the proposed budget.
- The Board of Trustees adopted minimum requirement is ~~42%~~17% of the prior year unrestricted general fund expenditures for the unrestricted reserve.
- Changes in the assumptions upon which the budget was based shall be reported to the Board of Trustees in a timely manner.
- Budget projections address long-term goals and commitments.

Also see AP 6200 Budget Preparation, BP/AP 3250 Budget Management, BP/AP 6300 Fiscal Management, AP 6305 Reserves, AP 6310 Accounting, and AP 6315 Warrants.

Adopted: 5/8/06

Revised: 12/14/15

Revised: 5/11/20

Revised: 1/9/23

*CCLC Recommended Language

**AVC Recommended Language



AP 6200 Budget Preparation

References:

Education Code Section 70902 subdivision (b)(5);
Title 5 Sections 58300 et seq;
Accreditation Standard III.D

The budget process will include consultation with appropriate groups and will link resource allocations to institutional planning.

The District will ~~have a goal to~~ maintain a ~~fifteen-seventeen~~ percent ~~(15%)(17%)~~ reserve of ~~the prior fiscal year unrestricted general fund expenditures~~ in any current budget year to pay obligations, or sixty (60) days of cash on hand in the unrestricted fund, whichever is greater.

A budget calendar that includes presentation of the tentative and final budgets will be distributed with the annual budget call. The tentative budget shall be presented no later than July 1 [Title 5 Section 58305 subdivision (a)], and the final budget no later than September 15 [Title 5 Section 58305 subdivision (c)]. A public hearing on the budget shall be held on or before September 15 [Title 5 Section 58301].

Two (2) copies of the adopted budget to be submitted to the California Community College Chancellor's Office on or before September 30 [Title 5 Section 58305 subdivision (d)].

Submission of appropriate financial reports to include upcoming budgets will be submitted to the California Community College Chancellor's Office via the CCFS311 Report.

Also see BP 6200 Budget Preparation, BP/AP 6250 Budget Management, BP/AP 6300 Fiscal Management, AP 6305 Reserves, AP 6310 Accounting, and AP 6315 Warrants.

Approved: 5/8/06
Revised: 8/13/16
Revised: 4/8/19
Revised: 4/13/20
Revised: 1/9/23

*CCLC Recommended Language

**AVC Recommended Language



BP 6250 Budget Management

References:

Title 5 Sections 58307 and 58308

The budget shall be managed in accordance with Title 5 and the California Community Colleges Budget and Accounting Manual. Budget revisions shall be made only in accordance with these policies and as provided by law.

The District is committed to addressing its long-term liabilities. Revenues accruing to the District in excess of amounts budgeted shall be added to a pension stabilization trust fund, so long as it can be supported in the multi-year budget projections and within the Board ~~goal requirement~~ approved of ~~15%17%~~ reserve levels. The intent of the pension stabilization fund is to ensure that the District can meet its current and future employer-funded pension obligations. Additionally, half of all new one-time funding will be directed to the pension stabilization fund until that fund is self-supporting. Any additional revenues above expenditures shall be added to the District's reserves for contingency. These funds are available for appropriation only upon a resolution of the Board of Trustees that sets forth the need according to major budget classifications in accordance with applicable law.

Board approval is required for changes between major expenditure classifications. Transfers from the reserve for contingencies to any expenditure classification must be approved by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the members of the Board of Trustees. Transfers between expenditure classifications must be approved by a majority vote of the members of the Board of Trustees.

Also see BP/AP 6200 Budget Preparation, AP 6250 Budget Management, BP/AP 6300 Fiscal Management, AP 6305 Reserves, AP 6310 Accounting, and AP 6315 Warrants.

Adopted: 5/8/06

Revised: 12/14/15

Revised: 5/13/19

Revised: 11/9/20

Revised: 1/9/23

*CCLC Recommended Language

**AVC Recommended Language



AP 6250 Budget Management

References:

Title 5 Sections 58305, 58307, and 58308

The Antelope Valley Community College District uses the following standards of budget management:

- Total amounts budgeted as the proposed expenditure for each major classification of expenditures shall be the maximum expended for that classification for the school year, except as specifically authorized by the Board of Trustees.
- Transfers may be made from the reserve for contingencies to any expenditure classification by written resolution of the Board of Trustees, and must be approved by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the members of the Board of Trustees.
- Transfers may be made between expenditure classifications by written resolution of the Board of Trustees, and may be approved by a majority of the members of the Board of Trustees.
- Excess funds must be added to the general reserve of the District, and are not available for appropriation except by resolution of the Board of Trustees setting forth the need according to major classification.

Also see BP/AP 6200 Budget Preparation, BP 6250 Budget Management, BP/AP 6300 Fiscal Management, AP 6305 Reserves, AP 6310 Accounting, and AP 6315 Warrants.

Adopted: 5/8/06

Revised: 11/9/15

Revised: 10/12/20

Reviewed: 1/9/23

*CCLC Recommended Language

**AVC Recommended Language



BP 6300 Fiscal Management

References:

Education Code Section 84040 **subdivision** (c);

Title 5 Section 58311;

ACCJC Accreditation Standard III.D

2 Code of Federal Regulations Parts 200.302 subdivision (b)(6)-(7), 200.305, and 200.400 et seq.

The Superintendent/President shall establish procedures to assure that the District's fiscal management is in accordance with the principles contained in Title 5 Section 58311, including:

- Adequate internal controls exist.
- Fiscal objectives, procedures, and constraints are communicated to the Board of Trustees and employees.
- Adjustments to the budget are made in a timely manner, when necessary.
- The management information system provides timely, accurate, and reliable fiscal information.
- Responsibility and accountability for fiscal management are clearly delineated.

The Superintendent/President shall also establish procedures that satisfy the U.S. Education Department General Administrative Regulations (EDGAR) Second Edition for any federal funds received by the District.

The books and records of the District shall be maintained pursuant to the California Community Colleges Budget and Accounting Manual.

As required by law, the Board of Trustees shall be presented with a quarterly report showing the financial and budgetary conditions of the District.

As required by the California Community Colleges Budget and Accounting Manual, expenditures shall be recognized in the accounting period in which the liability is incurred, and shall be limited to the amount budgeted for each major classification of accounts and to the total amount of the budget for each fund.

Also see BP/AP 6200 Budget Preparation, BP/AP 6250 Budget Management, AP 6300 Fiscal Management, AP 6305 Reserves, AP 6310 Accounting, and AP 6315 Warrants.

Adopted: 5/8/06

Revised: 12/14/15

Revised: 6/8/20

Revised: 1/9/23

*CCLC Recommended Language

**AVC Recommended Language



AP 6300 Fiscal Management

References:

Education Code Section 84040 ~~subdivision~~-(c);

Title 5 Section 58311;

ACCJC Accreditation Standard III.D.9

2 Code of Federal Regulations Parts 200.302 subdivision (b)(6)-(7), 200.305, and 200.400 et seq.

The District uses the following minimum standards as principles for sound fiscal management in Title 5, to ensure that procedures comply with requirements. In addition, the District shall use commonly accepted auditing standards as criteria for fiscal management procedures.

- Provide for responsible stewardship of available resources.
- Provide for safeguarding and managing District assets to ensure ongoing effective operations; maintenance of adequate cash reserves; implementation and maintenance of effective internal controls; determination of sources of revenues prior to making short- term and long-term commitments; establishment of a plan for the repair and replacement of equipment and facilities.
- Provide for an organizational structure that incorporates a clear delineation of fiscal responsibilities and staff accountability.
- Provide that appropriate administrators keep the Board of Trustees current on the fiscal condition of the District as an integral part of policy and decision-making.
- Provide for development and communication of fiscal policies, objectives and constraints to the Board of Trustees, staff, and students.
- Provide for an adequate management information system that gives timely, accurate and reliable fiscal information for planning, decision making and budgetary control.
- Provide for appropriate fiscal policies and procedures and adequate controls to ensure that established fiscal objectives are met.
- Provide a process to evaluate significant changes in the fiscal environment and make necessary, timely, financial and educational adjustments.
- Provide both short term and long-term goals and objectives, and broad-based input coordinated with District educational planning.



- Provide an annual review of the California Community College Sound Fiscal Management Self-assessment Checklist.

The California Community College's Budget and Accounting Manual shall be used by the District as the official accounting manual.

Also see BP/AP 6200 Budget Preparation, BP/AP 6250 Budget Management, BP 6300 Fiscal Management, AP 6305 Reserves, AP 6310 Accounting, and AP 6315 Warrants.

Adopted: 5/8/06

Revised: 11/9/15

Revised: 5/11/20

Revised: 1/9/23

*CCLC Recommended Language

**AVC Recommended Language



AP 6305 Reserves

Reference:

Budget and Accounting Manual, Chapter 5; Appendix A

The District shall have as a high budget priority the appropriation in the final budget of an uncommitted reserve in the unrestricted general fund. The Board of Trustees recognizes the need for cash-flow management and the necessity of considering financial uncertainties in the development of the District budget. To this end, the following reserve accounts shall be included in the final budget:

General Reserves

The final budget shall include an unappropriated reserve to ensure that the District will be in a positive cash position at the end of the fiscal year. This reserve shall be (at a minimum) ~~twelve percent (12%)~~ ~~seventeen percent (17%)~~ ~~with a budgeted goal of fifteen percent (15%)~~ of ~~prior fiscal year actual~~ unrestricted general fund revenues ~~and beginning fund balance~~ and shall not be available for appropriations during the fiscal year.

Reserve for Emergencies

The District budget shall also include an appropriation for reserve for economic uncertainties to cover:

1. unanticipated emergencies;
2. unanticipated declines in property tax revenues or other sources of funds;
3. additional program development activities not considered prior to budget adoption. ~~This reserve shall be goal of three percent (3%) of total unrestricted general fund revenues and beginning fund balance.~~

The Superintendent/President is authorized to utilize funds from the emergency fund for urgent situation upon verbal notification to the President of the Board of Trustees or, if he/she cannot be reached, any other member of the Board. Any such use of the reserve shall be reported to the Board of Trustees in the next regularly scheduled open session.

Approved: 5/11/20

Revised: 1/9/23

*CCLC Recommended Language

**AVC Recommended Language